SUTLF 2024 (Language Teaching and Brain Science) Fully Hybrid

Friday, 2 February 2024 - Sunday, 4 February 2024 Sojo University



Book of Abstracts

Contents

Supporting neurodiverse students through adaptive pedagogy	1
This is Your Brain in Group Work: Anxiety in Communicative Classrooms	1
Assessing a Self-Access Learning Centre through Student Surveys	2
Cognitive Load Theory: How Learning Works in the Classroom	2
Project-based English learning activities based on IoT and Arduino for Japanese Engineering students	3
Games and kinesthetic activities for increasing lesson accessibility	3
What is Too Much? Considering the Cognitive Limitations of University English Learners in Japan	3
Perceptions towards and use of conversation strategies in an English Communication Course	4
	4
Seriously, That's How the Brain Does Language?	4
Automaticity training: effortless language processing	5
Task completion or opportunity to talk more? Developing student interactional skills	5
What goes on in the minds of children while being read an English picture book?	6
Cultivating Well-Being: Navigating a Void of Vulnerability	6
Self-Access vs. Language Classes –a CHAT Analysis	7
Short Virtual Exchanges in the Language Classroom	7
The change of first language in a second language environment	8
Why We Should Sleep More	8
Sources of Readerly Attention in English-Language Haiku: An Exploratory Study	8
Brain-friendly Study Skills for Teachers and Students: The Dragon and the Rider in our Brain	9
Make It or Break It- Habits for Learning Success	10
A Digital Storytelling Project in an ESP Course—Impact on Students'Speaking Anxiety .	10

guage Learning	
Three Types of Similarity between School and the World	11
Reception	11
Profane language in the brain and in the language classroom	12
Networking Art Exhibit	12
Scaffolding functions, actions, means, and intentions	12
Addressing Information Retention through Note-Taking Techniques	12
Hidden Connections: Relationships, Neuroscience and Language Teaching	13
Empty room available for practice	13
Empty room available for practice	13
Cultivating Well-Being: Navigating a Void of Vulnerability	13

Posters / 2

Supporting neurodiverse students through adaptive pedagogy

Author: Sean Henry Toland¹ **Co-author:** Tony Cripps ²

¹ The International University of Kagoshima

Corresponding Authors: seanhtoland@gmail.com, cripps@nanzan-u.ac.jp

The growing popularity of social media sites, coupled with the omnipresence of digital devices, means that most Japanese university English language learners (ELLs) process a tremendous amount of digital stimuli on a daily basis. Thus, it is important that English as an international language (EIL) educators put more emphasis on cultivating students' critical thinking skills. Creating a critically conscious and active learning environment is something that is much easier said than done, especially for neurodivergent learners. Conditions such as autism spectrum disorder, attention deficit hyperactive disorder (ADHD), and dyslexia fall under the umbrella of neurodiversity. Neurodiverse students have unique strengths and learning needs that are often overlooked by teachers. This presentation will highlight how EIL educators can make their lessons and instructional materials more accessible to neurodiverse ELLs. The presenters will describe the adaptive pedagogical practices they utilized with neurodivergent students in a communicative English course. They will also discuss how YouTube content (e.g., viral marketing videos) and technology-enhanced learning projects (e.g., multimodal videos, e-portfolios) can be used to foster Japanese ELLs'creativity and critical thinking abilities. This presentation should be of interest to EIL educators who wish to establish a more active learning environment and expand their teaching repertoire. The lesson ideas and pedagogical pointers that will be examined in this presentation can be used with both neurodivergent and neurotypical students and applied to a wide range of instructional contexts.

Posters / 3

This is Your Brain in Group Work: Anxiety in Communicative Classrooms

Author: Larry Xethakis¹

Corresponding Author: xethakis@tsc.u-tokai.ac.jp

As approaches to language teaching based on interaction between learners (e.g., Communicative Language Teaching; Task-based Language Teaching) have become the norm in many classrooms, group and pair work have come to play a prominent role in language learning. Working in groups or pairs gives learners more opportunities to use English, share information about themselves and build rapport with other learners. It can also help to reduce learners' fears about speaking in front of others. However, for some learners, simply doing pair- or group-work brings about feelings of unease because of social anxiety. When learners work in small groups, they often work with unfamiliar classmates or are placed in situations where they are unsure of what to do. Such situations can be difficult for learners to cope with even in their first language. With the increased cognitive and psychological demands involved when using a second language in pairs or groups, feelings of unease can be amplified, causing discomfort, or even distress. Social anxiety has been shown to play an influential role in learners' attitudes towards working in groups (e.g., Zhou, 2015), and thus placing socially anxious learners into group-learning contexts without due consideration can be detrimental not only to the individual learners, but also to the learning of the group. In this presentation, I discuss situational triggers of anxiety reported by learners and activities to help curb the influence of anxiety based on research into anxiety and classroom experience.

² Nanzan University

¹ Tokai University, Kumamoto Campus

Posters / 6

Assessing a Self-Access Learning Centre through Student Surveys

Author: John Bankier¹

Corresponding Author: bankierjohn@gmail.com

This presentation will describe how surveys were utilized during the development of a university self-access language learning center. Although we focus on self-access, we hope the insights from the survey will be of interest to teachers focused on classroom contexts.

The center, opened in 2021, provides opportunities for L2 use (English, Spanish and Chinese), cross-cultural interactions, self-directed language learning support and preparation for study abroad. The center caters to students from three faculties and is run by a committee of faculty members and administrative staff.

Based on discussions with students and staff, our analysis of questionnaire results focused on the following areas:

- 1) Are students aware of the facilities and resources available?
- 2) Do the two English conversation lounges meet the needs of the student body and provide a welcoming atmosphere?
- 3) What resources and events would be of most interest to students?

The survey was administered in Fall 2022, and Spring and Fall in 2023. Initial results suggested that efforts to promote the center to students had been unsuccessful with many students. Furthermore, a comparatively large number of detailed responses described a clique-like atmosphere that had developed in the upper-level conversation lounge. We began several initiatives to address issues like these, including adjusting the survey itself to provide data that could be used when presenting the proposed initiatives to the SALC committee.

We will summarize the results of the survey up to Fall 2023, including students'voices, to evaluate the extent to which initiatives had led to positive change.

Workshop / 7

Cognitive Load Theory: How Learning Works in the Classroom

Author: Julia Daley1

Corresponding Author: daleysensei@gmail.com

Have you ever wondered how the content you're teaching in class makes its way into your students' brains? Well, that journey begins from their eyes and ears, which send information to their Sensory Memory. From there, the salient bit of sensory input—ideally that new content being taught—makes its way to a student's Working Memory. After a couple of minutes, that new information finishes its travels and ends up in a student's Long-Term Memory, where everything else they've ever learned is stored. Learning accomplished!

While the learning process seems straightforward enough, there are a few roadblocks inside our Working Memory that can derail everything. First, it has limited capacity, so it can only hold so many things at a time. Additionally, some things "weigh" more on the mind, which further impacts how much we can hold in our Working Memory. Finally, things can remain in our Working Memory

¹ Kanagawa University

¹ Hiroshima Bunkyo University

for about 30 seconds before they disappear forever into the void of unlearned things. It turns out that making that two-minute trek to Long-Term Memory can be quite challenging!

This is where Cognitive Load Theory comes in, which gives us a framework we can apply to our teaching, so we can try and smooth over those roadblocks to learning. Participants in this session will learn about Cognitive Load Theory and discuss ways they can apply its concepts to their classrooms.

Presentations A / 8

Project-based English learning activities based on IoT and Arduino for Japanese Engineering students

Author: Luc Gougeon¹

Corresponding Author: lucgougeon@gmail.com

Global companies in Japan require students to possess both 21st-century skills and basic English skills. This practice-focused presentation will show how English can be integrated into IoT education for Computer Science and engineering students in a Japanese university.

Project-based learning or CLIL approaches are increasingly popular in Japan.

This presentation will describe how students from the IoT club were encouraged to build a self-driving car and work on personal projects by learning how to use Arduino microcontrollers and consult English language documentation.

There is hope that this type of activities will be replicated in other universities and be extended to other departments and topics.

The club activities took place in the second semester of 2023 and were attended by a small core of students who documented their learning experience for a local cable TV show.

Additionally, this presentation will describe how a foreign teacher and two Japanese teachers collaborated to ease the students into working in English.

Presentations A / 9

Games and kinesthetic activities for increasing lesson accessibility

Author: Ran Kuperman¹

Corresponding Author: kuperman-r@kanda.kuis.ac.jp

Games and kinesthetic learning can make any lesson's content more accessible to students. For example, visualizing the differences between DNA and RNA with a drawing or using beads to represent changes in population genetics. The presenter will share four different activities from a CLIL course teaching evolution concepts in English for 3rd and 4th year university learners and participants will get to try them out.

Presentations B / 10

What is Too Much? Considering the Cognitive Limitations of University English Learners in Japan

¹ Sojo University

¹ Kanda University of International Studies

Author: Jason Hobman¹

Corresponding Author: jasonhobman@icloud.com

It can be easy for teachers to assume that if they have the correct method, correct approach, and motivated students that learning will take place. However, even with all these things in place, sometimes the most dedicated of learners may show signs of demotivation or slow progress. The core of this problem may be because of both hard-wired cognitive limitations common to all learners and cognitive patterns that have developed due to previous educational experiences. This may be seen most clearly in the transition from high school to university, in which students may be expected to undertake a sudden change from primarily Japanese-led classes to English-only classes. Cognitive theories may offer some insight into the reasons why this causes problems for certain students. In particular, there may be some cognitive limitations that university lecturers have perhaps not taken into consideration. In this presentation, I will look at the problem of cognitive limitations using Anderson's ACT theory (2002). I will look at how this theory may suggest some cognitive limitations for students in the transition from high school to university. I will then look at how this may manifest as problems in the English classroom at universities. I will finally offer some possible solutions.

Posters / 11

Perceptions towards and use of conversation strategies in an English Communication Course

Author: Rachel Matsushita1

Corresponding Author: rachelb@m.sojo-u.ac.jp

This poster consists of the rationale, methodology, results, and discussion of an exploratory study with the purpose of focusing the potential scope of research possibilities regarding the use of conversation strategies in first-year English Communication, or EC1, courses at Sojo University. Conversation strategies have been included as a component of the EC1 and 2 curriculum in part since 2019. The purpose of this research is to gather and analyze general data is gathered about students' knowledge of communicative competence, opinion of strategic competence in conversation, and perceptions of the specific strategies learned in their first English Communication course, or EC1. Communicative language teaching targets improving a language learner's communicative competence. The theory on which the inclusion of conversation strategies in EC1 is that strategic competence is an integral part of communicative competence, and it is believed that communication strategies perform an important function in the development of strategic competence, and therefore the development of a learner's overall communicative competence (Canale and Swain, 1980). Data consists of a survey which addresses students'knowledge and opinion of conversation strategies, as well as test transcripts which were analyzed for the presence of conversation strategies in use by the students. Results of data analysis show a generally positive opinion on the inclusion of strategies in the course, as well as their usefulness in spoken conversation. The results of this study will inform the design of a more in-depth, larger scale project in the future.

Workshop / 12

Seriously, That's How the Brain Does Language?

Author: Curtis Kelly¹

¹ Saitama University

¹ Sojo University

¹ retired

Corresponding Author: ctskelly@gmail.com

We now have an understanding of how the brain does language. Embodiment is the key, meaning that almost all meaning comes from the way your brain records experiences as sensory routines. Language too is stored in motor-sensory models. If you hear the expression coffee-colored dog, you not only activate sensory routines for the sight and smell of a dog, but for coffee too, and more. This view of how the brain simulates the motor-sensory experiences that each word represents gives us insights into language teaching. For example, why stories are so successful, why we have grammar, and why a lot of what we are doing just doesn't work. Let us explore and share at this talk.

Posters / 13

Automaticity training: effortless language processing

Author: Steve Paton None

Corresponding Author: jalt@stevepaton.com

Drilling, as a language-learning activity, has fallen out of favor over the past few decades, but it is finding support in Skills Acquisition Theory (DeKeyser, 2007) literature and as falling within Butzkamm and Caldwell's (2009) generative principle of language development.

When drilling was last in vogue, modern technologies and language learning tools had not been developed. Now, tools such as spreadsheets and simple text-to-speech generators such as that within the Quizlet application can be combined to produce almost limitless pattern practice opportunities that can be carried out by an individual using tools they already carry with them.

This presentation will show how a spreadsheet was developed which could produce double-sided Quizlet flashcards for drilling Japanese grammar conjugations. The cards were enormously effective in helping the presenter untangle the complexities of Japanese grammar, and the spreadsheet functions and applicability within the Quizlet app can be copied by other teachers or learners who want to practice or assign drilling practice in Japanese, English, or (presumably) any language.

Presentations C / 14

Task completion or opportunity to talk more? Developing student interactional skills

Author: Yosuke Ogawa¹

Corresponding Author: ogawatravail@gmail.com

Some teachers may have the experience of students terminating their L2 speech immediately after an allocated speaking task has been completed in minimal fashion and teachers have struggled to increase the amount of student talk beyond these minimized turns. Numerous learning-motivation studies have demonstrated that the factors behind minimized talk are language anxiety towards syntactic, lexical, or phonological accuracy. However, those studies are based on students'selfevaluation through questionnaire or interview. In other words, the approach does not focus on how they actually interact in classroom. This presentation will outline ways students can be encouraged to expand their talk. Firstly, the presenter will detail how students manipulate L1/L2 language choice and speech acts in classroom oral activities and how students attend to their limited L2 proficiency. Second, the language use will be categorized based on topic, learning task, interactant(s) and peripheral participants such as overhearer and eavesdropper. The findings suggest that students produce the least voluntary L2 speech when they are working on information-gap tasks. Furthermore, participant variation does not affect their speech rate. That is, even direct teacher observation does not affect the amount of talk. Additionally, frequency of their embodiment gesture use increases proportional to their L2 speech amount. Finally, some teaching tips to facilitate more expanded turns will be widely demonstrated based on the findings. An awareness of those interactional issues

¹ Kobe University

can help both students and their teachers orientate themselves to an interactional view of language with concomitant consequences for teaching and learning.

Presentations B / 15

What goes on in the minds of children while being read an English picture book?

Author: Makiko Tanaka¹ **Co-author:** Hiromi Kawai ¹

Corresponding Authors: kawai-h@kanda.kuis.ac.jp, tanaka@kanda.kuis.ac.jp

The benefits of reading aloud have been thoroughly examined and supported by research (Anderson et al., 2003; Isik, 2016; Phillips, 2000; Shickedanz & Collins, 2012; Suggate et al., 2013). Reading aloud is regarded as a positive foundation for children's lives and is indicative of academic and social success (Gurdon, 2019). This case study delves into the cognitive processes of children while being read an English picture book. It aimed to investigate: 1) the cognitive activities observed, 2) the affective responses elicited, and 3) the language learning features. The pedagogical approaches employed were interactive read-alouds (Barrentine, 1996) and shared reading, both of which align with established theories of language learning. Two third-year students from a public elementary school (aged 9) participated in the "English picture book read-aloud" event organized by our university. The reading was conducted by a university student who majors in the university's Children's English Teacher Training Course. The research methodology employed participatory observation, wherein one researcher intermittently posed questions to the children during the reading session. These questions were designed to explore the children's thoughts, emotions, and reasoning processes. The discourse analysis revealed that the children exhibited advanced cognitive abilities, including content prediction, analogical reasoning, and inference—skills that are distinctive and surpass what adult listeners might conceive. Additionally, the children demonstrated imaginative and astute visual perception skills when engaging with the illustrations of the book. This study underscores the importance of reading books to children, as it may equip them with essential thinking skills that prove valuable throughout their lives.

Presentations C / 16

Cultivating Well-Being: Navigating a Void of Vulnerability

Authors: Lynsey Mori¹; Philip Gurney¹; Trevor Raichura¹

Corresponding Authors: p_gurney@kufs.ac.jp, t_raichu@kufs.ac.jp, l_mori@kufs.ac.jp

In tertiary English language education in Japan, the pursuit of academic excellence often overshadows critical emotional and relational factors for effective learning. Our ongoing research delves into the complexities faced by non-national scholar-practitioner faculty members in Japan, focusing on primary insights into well-being and support. Our collaborative model integrates expertise in social-emotional learning (SEL), positive psychology, and conflict resolution, to address faculty vulnerability. Since May 2023, our journey has involved establishing a shared understanding of well-being, conducting a literature review, and formulating research questions. Using an anonymous Google form survey with a WHO5 Likert scale and open-ended questions, we gathered faculty opinions, offering follow-up interviews.

Key questions guiding our research include:

¹ Kanda University of International Studies

¹ Kyoto University of Foreign Studies

- What is known about the connection between well-being, support, and teaching/learning?
- ·How do identity and perceptions of well-being differ between Japanese and non-Japanese teaching staff?
- ·Should well-being be integrated into the curriculum or faculty development?
- What is the relationship between well-being and support in language teaching, particularly at our university?

This 25-minute presentation provides illustrative examples of applying SEL, positive psychology, and conflict resolution in our ongoing research. We will visually demonstrate the application of these models, offering a glimpse into survey methodology and initial observations. Ongoing analysis aims to contribute valuable insights towards a more inclusive, empathetic, and balanced academic community in Japan.

Presentations A / 17

Self-Access vs. Language Classes -a CHAT Analysis

Author: Viorel Ristea¹

Corresponding Author: ristea-v@pu-kumamoto.ac.jp

Similar to the traditional foreign language classroom, self-access language learning, though different in its approach, is also centered around the basic process of learning and acquiring proficiency in an L2. From the point of view of the learner, in either of the two environments, L2 becomes the focus of the process, which in the Cultural-Historical Activity Theory (CHAT) context translates to 'object'.

At the end of the previous academic year (March, 2023), an interpretive study was conducted among last year's fourth-year students who were frequent users of the Global Lounge (GL), the self-access center of a provincial university in Japan. Wishing to improve learners'L2 proficiency, the GL offers learners the possibility to book sessions with a self-access educator.

The data was collected through open-ended questionnaires and follow-up, semi-structured interviews with three of the ten students who replied. One purpose of the study was to reveal the students views towards different aspects of their GL sessions as compared with their regular foreign language classes.

According to Engeström and Sannino (2021), "[t]he formation of minimally two activity systems connected by a partially shared object may be regarded as the prime unit of analysis for third-generation [CHAT]." Taking the sessions at the GL and the foreign language classes as two separate activity systems, in this presentation I will use the third-generation of CHAT as a theoretical framework to illustrate how the learners conceptualize the differences between the two, and how they view their role and the educators'in each of them.

Presentations A / 18

Short Virtual Exchanges in the Language Classroom

Author: Robert Remmerswaal¹

¹ Sojo University

Corresponding Author: robertr@m.sojo-u.ac.jp

Virtual Exchanges (VE) repeatedly show that they promote language acquisition through the employment of various negotiation of meaning strategies, with both synchronous and asynchronous exchanges showing similar acquisition results as face-to-face exchanges. This presentation details a short VE between approximately 400 students in Japan and Korea. Students created two Flip videos,

¹ Prefectural University of Kumamoto - Center for International Education & Exchange

commented on the videos of other students, and had a synchronous video conversation in groups of four to seven students. Students completed surveys pre- and post-VE. The pre-VE survey had three Likert-like scales measuring self-efficacy, self-perceived communication competence (SPCC), and communication anxiety. The post-VE survey contained the same three scales, an additional enjoyment scale and open-ended questions. Students significantly reported higher self-efficacy post-VE and had slight positive changes in SPCC but almost no difference in their communication anxiety. Most students enjoyed the activities, especially creating videos, and recommend the VE be offered to students next year.

Presentations B / 19

The change of first language in a second language environment

Author: Sae Takashita^{None}

Corresponding Author: saeeeeetaka@gmail.com

This research presentation addresses the linguistic and neural change of one's first language during second language learning in the second language environment. The participants of the research are three English native speakers (from the U.S. and the U.K.) who came to Japan to study and will stay here for a year. The research uses a neuroimaging technique, fNIRS(functional Near-Infrared Spectroscopy), taking a longitudinal design over a year to examine the interaction of first and second language processing in the brain. The tasks used in the experiment are the Stroop Color and Word Test, Verbal Fluency Task, and Code-switching task. Additionally, linguistic and extralinguistic background data will also be collected to infer which factors are related to the change seen in the language and biological data collected during the experiments. The first experiment took place about the second month after the participants arrived in Japan. The research process is still ongoing and the results of the first experiment will be presented during the presentation.

Presentations B / 20

Why We Should Sleep More

Author: Julia Daley1

Corresponding Author: daleysensei@gmail.com

How much are you sleeping each night? How about your students? Probably not enough, if you live in Japan, which ranks among the most sleep-deprived societies in the world. School schedules, after-school activities, commuting times, homework, and screen time can all contribute towards students' (and teachers') lack of sleep. Students face additional obstacles towards good sleep with the changing of their circadian rhythms, which makes adolescents unable to fall asleep until later at night and unable to wake up until later in the morning. It's little wonder that so many students are sleep deprived! However, research shows that good sleep is not only essential for memory function during the day, but that the brain actually continues learning during sleep. Good sleep, then, can be the ultimate study tool.

This presentation aims to serve as a brief introduction to the neuroscience behind sleep—what happens during sleep, how much sleep is necessary, the consequences of sleep deprivation, and how sleep quality and duration can be improved. Participants will then discuss what role teachers have (if any) in encouraging better sleep for our students.

¹ Hiroshima Bunkyo University

Presentations B / 21

Sources of Readerly Attention in English-Language Haiku: An Exploratory Study

Author: Anna Shershnova¹

Corresponding Author: anna.shershnyova@gmail.com

Given that attention is an internal process that is hard to observe and the same term "attention"is used to refer to a wide range of experiences and situations, defining the concept of readerly attention poses even more challenges to scholars and educators. Humanities and Social Science researchers have been exploring the mechanisms of readers' attention by exposing them to narratives and conventional poetry. In this research-oriented presentation, three main sources of readerly attention in contemporary English-language haiku, a genre of short-form poetry, will be discussed: brevity, natural imagery, and juxtaposition. The sources of readerly attention were identified through a cognitive stylistic analysis of textual features of English-language haiku, supplemented by findings of a reader-response study carried out in the Japanese university setting. This exploratory research has shown that the extreme brevity of English-language haiku is a significant source of readerly attention in this genre of poetry. Simple natural imagery expressed in English-language haiku through common language facilitates the embodiment of readerly attention and is decoded by the reader more automatically, freeing the capacity for performing more cognitively demanding tasks, such as construing the overall meaning of a poem. Constructing the global meaning of an English-language haiku poem is heavily dependent on processing the 'cut', a conceptual gap between images, also known as juxtaposition. The technique of juxtaposition defamiliarizes the relationship between images encountered in English-language haiku, making it another powerful attention-grabber.

Workshop / 22

Brain-friendly Study Skills for Teachers and Students: The Dragon and the Rider in our Brain

Author: Masda Yuka¹

Corresponding Author: masdayuka@gmail.com

Supported by research findings, the Brain-friendly Study Skills workshop proposes a bottom-up and health-conscious approach to enhance learning productivity for you and your students. Bottom-up in order to work on learning problems at the root causes, and health-conscious because, on top of the obvious health benefit to be expected, healthy lifestyles are often more productive. The workshop is packed with digestible science and practical solutions on various intriguing themes. Instead of depending on limited resources like will power or working memory, follow logical steps smiling to the goal.

This session samples a selection of topics and activities from the modules that discuss steps you can take to achieve your life goals, from identifying genuine dreams to day-to-day task management. Genuine dreams have a powerful drive to motivate and support you in achieving the very dreams, but research suggests identifying them can be unexpectedly difficult and we are not even aware of the difficulty. We will look at the two systems in our brain for why dream identification can be so difficult.

The Brain-friendly Study Skills workshops have been successfully delivered at international conferences for the past four years and are adaptations of part of the well-received university courses the organiser has been developing and teaching regularly since 2020. She has taught two languages in three countries, acquired a PhD in the psychology of language in Hiroshima University, and currently teaches psychology and English at Tokyo University of Pharmacy and Life Sciences.

¹ Kyoto University of Advanced Science

¹ Tokyo University of Pharmacy and Life Sciences

Presentations A / 23

Make It or Break It- Habits for Learning Success

Author: Steve Jugovic¹

Corresponding Author: jugovics@hotmail.com

Teachers generally devote themselves to various important roles that predominantly focus on student learning. All too often, students we observe show evidence of recurring self-defeating lifestyle habits that inhibit learning and long-term goal achievement. Essentially, sleepy and distracted students are less likely to effectively pay attention and remember, which are the two key factors for learning. This classroom research sheds light on the significance of engaging students with specific content-based lifestyle related topics, in conjunction with current habit theory approaches that counter the information-action fallacy. Based on two ongoing Japanese university teaching contexts, the presenter aims to briefly highlight the results of student self-reflection, subsequent action and positive feedback. This session will also enable participants to self-reflect on their keystone habits, establish and utilize tiny habits and create implementation intention statements applicable to situations in and out of the classroom.

Presentations A / 24

A Digital Storytelling Project in an ESP Course—Impact on Students'Speaking Anxiety

Author: Shu-wen Lin¹ **Co-author:** David Bollen ²

Corresponding Author: dbollen@m.sojo-u.ac.jp

This presentation details an innovative digital storytelling project and its effect on speaking anxiety among Sophomore Landscape Architecture students at a Taiwanese university, undertaken in partnership with an Academic English Course at a Japanese university. The study focused on whether digital storytelling could serve as an effective pedagogical tool to reduce speaking anxiety in an English for Specific Purposes (ESP) setting.

The project was implemented over an 18-week ESP course during the spring semester of the 2022/23 academic year, engaging a total of 35 students who completed both pre- and post-intervention assessments using a speaking anxiety scale (He, 2013). The methodology encompassed a blend of narrative construction, peer collaboration, and digital media engagement, aiming to foster a supportive learning environment conducive to lowering affective barriers.

Data analysis employed quantitative methods to evaluate changes in speaking anxiety levels, with statistical tests applied to pre- and post-test scores to assess the significance of any observed reductions. Preliminary results suggest a statistically significant reduction in speaking anxiety, particularly regarding discomfort with vocabulary uncertainties, oral presentation of critical or complex information, and impromptu group interactions. The outcomes of this study are expected to contribute to the discourse on innovative teaching strategies in ESP and provide practical solutions for educators grappling with the challenges of speaking anxiety.

¹ Tenri University

¹ Fu Jen Catholic University

² Sojo University

Motivation and Reward: A Tool for Unlocking the Dopaminergic Pathways in English Language Learning

Author: Chris Regier None

Corresponding Author: mrregier@gmail.com

Navigating the intricate landscape of motivation in English language learning, cultivating a positive perception emerges as a fundamental factor. An exploration of this interplay through the dopaminergic system highlights that positive reinforcement not only activates neural pathways but also instigates behavioral adjustments and facilitates memory formation. Conversely, a lack of perceived reward dims these pathways, hindering the formation of new habits and impeding language acquisition. Language learners frequently oscillate between the realms of motivation and apathy during their learning journeys.

This presentation underscores the indispensable link between reward perception and language learning, proposing a valuable solution. The introduction of a simple, practical, and student-centered writing exercise empowers educators to guide students in uncovering personal motivations for learning English, connecting language acquisition with the activation of dopaminergic pathways. This tool aims to help students articulate diverse reasons for learning ESL and feel personally rewarded for their efforts. Educators can leverage this feedback to tailor strategies aligning with the unique motivations of each student.

Presentations C / 26

Three Types of Similarity between School and the World

Author: Koyo Ogawa^{None}

Corresponding Author: ogako.1124@gmail.com

Learners'successful application of their learning to later practical situations is called transfer of learning. Considering transfer of learning as one of the fundamental goals in education, educational psychologists started to examine what triggers this phenomenon more than a century ago. The central theory at that time was called the identical element theory, which claims that transfer is likely between problems including similar elements. On the other hand, it was largely believed that learners would fail to transfer their useful knowledge when they face dissimilar problems. Since the identical element theory, many researchers have examined it and supported its basic claim, while others have developed and expanded the theory, taking broader perspectives to include more transfer factors around the similarity principle. As a result, when transfer is discussed in recent literature, many researchers refer to the transfer-appropriate processing theory instead, which essentially makes similar claims to the identical element theory but putting more emphasis on learners' processing rather than problems seen in isolation and detached from learners. Therefore, it is now very difficult to understand transfer of learning from the singular lens of similarity. In order to make the discussion of transfer more applicable to second language education, this presentation tries to clarify three important types of similarity with the help of a diagram containing three elements: contents, contexts, and cognition. The presentation discusses how these three types of similarity foster learners' transfer, how they interact with each other, and how they might contribute to second language education.

Friday Evening / 27

Reception

Light drinks and snacks before the workshop

Friday Evening / 28

Profane language in the brain and in the language classroom

Corresponding Author: gillisfurutaka.amanda@gmail.com

We will look at explanations from brain science about where profanity is processed and stored in the brain, to what extent we can control our production of expletives, and the emotional causes and effects of the use of profanity. We will then turn our attention to our role as educators and discuss whether we should broach this topic with students when they are bound to come across it and what stumbling blocks they may have when learning this language on their own.

Friday Evening / 29

Networking Art Exhibit

Enjoy the art of Sojo University students as you network and enjoy an assortment of drinks and snacks provided by Warm Hearts Coffee.

Posters / 30

Scaffolding functions, actions, means, and intentions

Authors: Lailoma Hassani¹; Richard Lavin¹

Corresponding Authors: ricklavin2001@mac.com, g2362001@pu-kumamoto.ac.jp

Wood et al. (1976) used the term "scaffolding" to describe the support given by an adult to a child. Since then, the term has also been used to describe support offered to a novice by a more knowledgeable other. Wood et al. specified scaffolding as consisting of six functions: recruitment, reduction in degrees of freedom, direction maintenance, marking critical features, frustration control, and demonstration. Most work in scaffolding has taken these six functions as definitive/definitional. One example is McCormick and Donato (2000), who look at the questions asked by teachers in university EFL classes and classify those questions according to the six functions.

The authors reexamine McCormick and Donato's data and suggest that their classifications are questionable and that many of the questions they analyze may actually have multiple functions. They also draw attention to the work of Maryam et al. (2020), who propose eight functions of scaffolding realized through 21 scaffolding actions, such as concretizing and simplifying. The two extra functions proposed are mutual enjoyment and participation in the activity. While the authors suggest that these additional functions are not well-founded, the fact that new functions are still being proposed demonstrates that the precise specification of scaffolding is still an open issue.

We conclude by discussing recent work by van de Pol (2010, 2011, 2013), who examines teacher-student interactions in fine detail from the point of view of contingency, a central notion in distinguishing scaffolding from other kinds of support.

Presentations C / 31

Addressing Information Retention through Note-Taking Techniques

¹ Prefectural University of Kumamoto

Author: Paul Bird^{None}

Corresponding Author: birdpj1977@gmail.com

This practice-orientated presentation addresses the problem of poor information retention in the university classroom context. In relation to tertiary education, the Japanese Ministry of Education (MEXT) mandates that each credit acquired by the student requires that s/he complete 45 hours of study, up to 30 hours of which is spent on student-teacher contact time. The imbalance between contact time and independent study presents students with a greater volume of information to process within the academic day. Information may fail to be adequately retained, thus negatively affecting student learning outcomes. To address this issue, it is necessary for educators to exploit note-taking techniques that facilitate knowledge retention. Examples of note-taking methods are the Cornell method, the outline method, and the charting method. The presentation explores the features of each method, their application in the classroom, and the associated benefits and drawbacks regarding suitability.

Plenary / 32

Hidden Connections: Relationships, Neuroscience and Language Teaching

Corresponding Author: magee.glenn@for.aichi-pu.ac.jp

Focusing solely on academic achievement in teaching can lead to missing out on important emotional and relational factors that significantly impact learning. These factors are always present in the classroom and are crucial to students' progress. How educators engage with students can affect the neurological and human connections that influence teaching, which can either facilitate or impede language learning. This presentation aims to highlight these hidden factors so that we can address them in ways that foster effective teaching and learning.

Presentations C / 33

Empty room available for practice

Presentations B / 34

Empty room available for practice

Presentations C / 35

Cultivating Well-Being: Navigating a Void of Vulnerability

Authors: Lynsey Mori¹; Philip Gurney¹; Trevor Raichura¹

Corresponding Authors: p_gurney@kufs.ac.jp, t_raichu@kufs.ac.jp, l_mori@kufs.ac.jp

¹ Kyoto University of Foreign Studies

In tertiary English language education in Japan, the pursuit of academic excellence often overshadows critical emotional and relational factors for effective learning. Our ongoing research delves into the complexities faced by non-national scholar-practitioner faculty members in Japan, focusing on primary insights into well-being and support. Our collaborative model integrates expertise in social-emotional learning (SEL), positive psychology, and conflict resolution, to address faculty vulnerability. Since May 2023, our journey has involved establishing a shared understanding of well-being, conducting a literature review, and formulating research questions. Using an anonymous Google form survey with a WHO5 Likert scale and open-ended questions, we gathered faculty opinions, offering follow-up interviews.

Key questions guiding our research include:

- ·What is known about the connection between well-being, support, and teaching/learning?
- ·How do identity and perceptions of well-being differ between Japanese and non-Japanese teaching staff?
- ·Should well-being be integrated into the curriculum or faculty development?
- ·What is the relationship between well-being and support in language teaching, particularly at our university?

This 25-minute presentation provides illustrative examples of applying SEL, positive psychology, and conflict resolution in our ongoing research. We will visually demonstrate the application of these models, offering a glimpse into survey methodology and initial observations. Ongoing analysis aims to contribute valuable insights towards a more inclusive, empathetic, and balanced academic community in Japan.